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GREENERGY HOLDINGS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly MUSX Corporation and Subsidiaries)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MARCH 31, 2014, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2013

Note March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 December 31, 2013
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash g R982,941 £377,648,205 R1,021,361
Receivables 10 73,964,815 6,199,926 60,237,731
Due from related parties 21 341,116,048 268,571,764 341,121,776
Advances for investments 12 - - -
Assets classified as held for sale 8 671,104,589 - 671,104,589
Other current assets 632,071 20,738,787 607,652
Total Current Assets 1,087,800,468 673,158,682 1,074,093,109
Noncurrent Assets
Available-for-sale (AFS) investments 11 97,928,047 78,144,326 97,928,047
Advances to projects - 102,133,533 -
Investment in associates - 13 146,545,009 64,416,483 147,640,485
Advances for a waste recycling project 12 235,008,036 235,008,036 235,008,036
Property and equipment 14 990,189 290,960,038 1,104,407
Deferred tax assets 22 87,160 80,205 87,160
Other nencurrent assets 15 179,006 - 179,006
Total Noncurrent Assets 480,737,447 770,742,621 481,947,141
#1,568,537,915 #1,443,901,303 #1,556,040,250
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 R1,441,842 R18,803,187 R1,933,465
Due to related parties 21 46,545,181 8,781,447 34,677,687
Income tax payahble - 17,468 1,857
Liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as heid for sale 8 5,795,420 - 5,795,420
Total Current Liabilities 53,782,443 27,602,102 42,408,469
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY
Capital stock 17 1,328,028,565 1,195,278,565 1,324,278,565
Additional paid-in capital 268,090,531 268,090,531 268,090,531
Fair value reserve for AFS investments 11 (54,428,547) - (54,428,547)
Other reserves - 1,235,415 -
Deficit {293,267,183) {288,846,398) (290,671,044)
1,248,423,366 1,175,762,113 1,247,269,505
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST 24 266,332,106 240,537,088 266,362,276
Total Equity 1,514,755,472 1,416,299,201 1,513,631,781
' P1,568,537,915% #1,443,901,303 R1,556,040,250

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



GREENERGY HOLDINGS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
{Formerly MUSX Corporation and Subsidiaries)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MACH 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

March
December 31,
Notes 2014 2013 2012 2013
Continuing operation
Share in income {loss) of associates 13 (R1,095,476) B- B~ (R675,999)
General and administrative expenses 18 (1,501,208) (13,371,954} (5,347,072) (6,836,740)
Other operating expenses - net 19 - - -~ (7,038,681)
Interest income 9 545 1,443,320 - 1,260,713
Loss before tax from continuing
operation (2,596,139) (11,928,634) (5,347,072) (13,290,707}
Income tax benefit 22 - - - 5,058
Net loss from continuing operations (2,596,139) (11,928,634) (5,347,072) (13,285,649)
Net loss from discontinued operations -
net of tax 20
NET LOSS (2,596,139) (11,928,634) (5,347,072) (13,285,649)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Items to be reclassified in profit or loss - - -
Net fair value changes of AFS -
investment 11 - {10,316,381) (48,430,340)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (#2,596,139) (R22,245,015) (R5,347,072) (R61,715,989)
Net Loss attributable to
Equity holders of Parent Company (®2,579,026) £41,921,844 (R5,282,201) (P13,753,280)
Noncontrolling interest 24 (17,113) (53,850,478) {64,871) 467,631
{R2,596,139) (R11,928,634) (R5,347,072) (R13,285,645)
Basic loss per share 23 {R0.000015)  {#0.000080) (R0.000060) (RQ.000082)
Dilutive loss per share 23 (R0.000015)  (R0.000080) (R0.000060) (R0.000074)
Total Comprehensive Loss attributable
to
Equity holders of Parent Company (#2,579,026) ®3,112,542 (R5,282,201) (R62,183,620)
Noncontrolling interest 24 {17,113) {25,357,557) (64,871) 467,631
(P2,596,139) (R22,245,015) (R5,347,072) (R61,715,989)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



GREENERGY HOLDINGS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly MUSX Corporation and Subsidiaries)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

March
December 31,
Note 2014 2013 2012 2013
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO PARENT HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY
CAPITAL STOCK
Issued and subscribed:
Balance at beginning of year P1,324,278,565  R1,100,278,56% RS22,010,005  R1,100,278,565
Issuances and subscriptions of shares 17 3,750,000 95,000,000 250,000,000 431,000,000
Decrease (increase) in subscription receivable 17 - - (187,500,000} {207,000,000)
Balance at end of the quarter/year 1,328,028,565 1,195,278,565 584,510,005 1,324,278,565
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of year 268,090,531 60,321,971 60,321,971 268,090,531
Premiums received - 207,768,560 - -
Balance at end of quarter/year 268,090,531 268,090,531 60,321,971 268,090,531
CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT
Batance at beginning of year
As previously reported - - - 17,358,586
Prior period adjustments 6 - - - {17,358,586)
As restated - = - =
Balance at end of quarter/year - = - -
FAIR VALUE RESERVE FOR
AFS INVESTMENTS 11
Balance at beginning of year
Income/loss for the period {54,428,547) - 28,683,061 (8,705,880)
Other comprehensive income 6 - - - 2,707,673
Balance - - 28,683,061 (5,998,207)
Fair value changes of AFS investments - - - (48,430,340}
Balance at end of quarter/year {54,428,547) - 28,683,061 {54,428,547)
DEFICIT
Balance at beginning of year
Beginning balance (290,671,044} (276,917,764} (276,917,764) (275,917,764)
Total comprehensive loss {income) for the
guarter/year 6 {2,596,139) {11,928,634) (5,347,073} (13,753,280)
Balance at end of quarter/year {293,267,183) {288,846,398) (282,091,853) {290,671,044)

(Forward)
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December 31,

Note March 31,2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 2013
OTHER RESERVES
Balance at beginning of year
As previously reported R- R— R- ®29,327,852
Prior period adjustment 6 - - - (29,327,852)
Balance - 1,239,415 - -
Balance as the end of the quarter/year R- #1,239,415 R R-
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 1,248,423,366 1,175,762,113 391,423,184 1,247,269,505
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS 24
Balance at beginning of year
As previously reported - - - 294,387,566
Prior period adjustment 6 - - - (28,492,921
Balance 266,362,276 265,894,645 - 265,894,645
Share in net income (loss) (17,113) {25,357,557) (64,871} 467,631
Investment by minority stockholder - - =
Effect of business combination - ht —
Balance at end of quarter/year 266,332,106 240,537,088 (64,871) 266,362,276
P1,514,755,472 P1,416,299,201 #£391,358,313 R1,513,631,781

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financigl Statements.



GREENERGY HOLDINGS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
{Formerly MUSX Corporation and Subsidiaries)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MARCH 31, 2014, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

Note March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 December 31, 2013
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 9 #982,941 R377,648,205 R1,021,361
Receivables 10 73,964,819 6,199,926 60,237,731
Due from related parties 21 341,116,048 268,571,764 341,121,776
Advances for investments 12 - - -
Assets classified as held for sale 8 671,104,589 - 671,104,58%
Other current assets 632,071 20,738,787 607,652
Total Current Assets 1,087,800,468 673,158,682 1,074,093,109
Noncurrent Assets
Available-for-sale (AFS) investments 11 97,928,047 78,144,326 97,928,047
Advances to projects - 102,133,533 -
Investment in associates 13 146,545,009 64,416,483 147,640,485
Advances for a waste recyching project 12 235,008,036 235,008,036 235,008,036
Property and equipment 14 990,189 290,560,038 1,104,407
Deferred tax assets 22 87,160 80,205 87,160
Other noncurrent assets 15 179,006 - 179,006
Total Noncurrent Assets 480,737,447 770,742,621 481,947,141
®1,568,537,915 #1,443,901,303 #1,556,040,250
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 R1,441,842 #18,803,187 21,933,465
Due to related parties 21 46,545,181 8,781,447 34,677,687
Income tax payable - 17,468 1,897
Liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held for sale B 5,795,420 - 5,795,420
Total Current Liabilities 53,782,443 27,602,102 42,408,469
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY
Capital stock 17 1,328,028,565 1,195,278,565 1,324,278,565
Additional paid-in capital 268,090,531 268,090,531 268,090,531
Fair value reserve for AFS investments 11 (54,428,547} - (54,428,547)
Other reserves - 1,239,415 -
Deficit {293,267,183) (288,846,398) {290,671,044)
1,248,423,366 1,175,762,113 1,247,269,505
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST 24 266,332,106 240,537,088 266,362,276
Total Equity 1,514,755,472 1,416,299,201 1,513,631,781
#1,568,537,915 ®1,443,901,303 ®1,556,040,250

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



GREENERGY HOLDINGS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly MUSX Corporation and Subsidiaries)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MACH 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

March
December 31,
Notes 2014 2013 2012 2013
Continuing operation
Share in income (loss) of associates 13 (m1,095,476) R B- (P675,999)
General and administrative expenses 18 (1,501,208) (13,371,954} {5,347,072)  {6,836,740)
Cther operating expenses - net 19 - - - (7,038,681)
Interest income 9 545 1,443,320 - 1,260,713
Loss before tax from continuing
operation {2,596,139) {11,928,634) (5,347,072) (13,290,707)
Income tax benefit 22 - - - 5,058
Net loss from continuing operations {2,596,139) (11,928,634) (5,347,072) {13,285,649)
Net loss from discontinued operations -
net of tax 20
NET LOSS (2,596,139) (11,928,634) {5,347,072) {13,285,649}
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Items to be reclassified in profit or loss - - -
Net fair value changes of AFS -
investment 11 - {10,315,381) (48,430,340)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS {F2,596,139) {R22,245,015) {R5,347,072) (R61,715,989)
Net Loss attributable to
Equity holders of Parent Company (#2,579,026) 841,921,844 (R5,282,201) (®13,753,280)
Noncontrolling interest 24 {17,113)  (53,850,478) {64,871} 467,631
{(R2,596,139) (R11,928,634) (R5,347,072) {#13,285,649)
Basic loss per share 23 {R0.000015)  (R0.000080) {R0.000060)  (R0.000082)
Dilutive loss per share 23 {®0.000015)  (R0.000080) (R0.000060)  {RO.000074)
Total Comprehensive Loss attributable
to
Equity holders of Parent Company (r2,579,026) B3,112,542 {®5,282,201) (#62,183,620)
Noncontrolling interest 24 (17,113} (25,357,557) {64,871) 467,631
(R2,596,139) {R22,245,015}) {R5,347,072) {R61,715,989)

See occomponying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



GREENERGY HOLDINGS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly MUSX Corporation and Subsidiaries)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

March
Dacember 31,
Note 2014 2013 2012 2013
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO PARENT HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY
CAPITAL STOCK
Issued and subscribed:
Balance at beginning of year #1,324,278,565  #1,100,278,565 ®522,010,005  R1,100,278,565
Issuances and subseriptions of shares 17 3,750,000 95,000,000 250,000,000 431,000,000
Decrease {Increase) in subscription recelvable 17 - - (187,500,000) {207,000,000)
Balance at end of the quarter/year 1,328,028,565 1,195,278,565 584,510,005 1,324,278,565
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of year 268,090,531 60,321,971 60,321,971 268,080,531
Premiums received - 207,768,560 - -
Balance at end of quarter/year 268,090,531 268,090,531 60,321,971 268,090,531
CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT
Balance at beginning of year
As previously reported - - - 17,358,586
Prior perlod adjustments 6 - - - (17,358,586)
As restated - - - -
Balance at end of quarter/year - - - -
FAIR VALUE RESERVE FOR
AFS INVESTMENTS 11
Balance at beginning of year
income/loss for the period {54,428,547) - 28,683,061 (8,705,880}
Other comprehensive income 6 - - - 2,707,673
Balance - - 28,683,061 (%,998,207)
Fair value changes of AFS investments - = - (48,430,340}
Balance at end of quarter/year {54,428,547) - 28,683,061 (54,428,547)
DEFICIT
Balance at beginning of year
Beginning balance {290,671,044) (276,917,764} (276,917,764} {276,917,764)
Tatal comprehensive loss {income) for the
quarter/year 6 (2,596,139) {11,928,634) (5,347,073) {13,753,280)
Balance at end of quarter/year (293,267,183} (288,846,398) (282,091,853} (290,671,044)

{Forward)



GREENERGY HOLDINGS INCORPORATED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
{Formerly MUSX Corporation and its Subsidiaries)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

March
December 31,
Note 2014 2013 2012 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax from continuing
operation (®2,596,139)  (P11,928,634) {®1,066,052} {r13,290,707)
Loss before tax on discontinued
operation 20 - - - =
Adjustments for: -
Share in {income) loss of associates 13 1,095,476 - - 675,999
Depreciation and amortization 14 114,218 151,410 2,364 473,031
Provisions for:
Impairment loss on other
noncurrent assets 19 - - - 7,133,533
Impairment loss on advances to
related parties 19 - - - =
tmpairment loss on receivables 10 - - = -
Unrealized forex gain 19 - - - -
Loss due to dilution of ownership
interest in a former subsidiary - - - -
Impairment loss on investment in a
former subsidiary - - -
Loss on disposal of property and
equipment - - - -
Loss on disposal of AFS investments 1% - - - =
Interest income 9 {545) (1,443,320} - {1,260,713)
interest expense - - - -
Qperating loss before working capital
changes (1,386,990) (13,220,544} (1,063,688) {6,268,857)
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (13,727,086) {5,118,497) {(731,005) (59,156,302)
Due from related parties {230,994) - - (73,192,904)
Other current assets {24,419}  (16,668,571) (70,826) 3,020,096
Increase (decrease) in:
Due to related parties 11,867,494 1,495,313 - 28,887,074
Trade and other payables (497,458) 14,856,423 546,790 {2,192,699)
Net cash used for operations (3,999,453} {18,655,875) {1,318,730) (108,903,592)
Interest received 545 1,443,320 - 1,260,713
Net cash used in operating activities (3,998,908)  {17,212,556) (1,318,730) _ (107,642,879)

{Forward)



March
December 31,
Note 2014 2013 2012 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Additions to:
Investment in associates 13 - - - (55,000,000}
AFS investments 11 - - - (68,214,061)
Assets ciassified as held for sale,
net of liabilities 236,720 - - [(465,309,169)
Acguisition of property and eguipment 14 - {289,606,009) {232,949,340) (71,999)
Decrease (increase) in noncurrent assets - 179,006 - 635,932
Advances for investments - - - -
Other reserves - 11,890,251
Advances for a waste recycling project - (94,364,067) - -
Investment of noncontrolling interest in
subsidiaries (26,232) {25,357,557) {64,871) -
Proceeds from sale AFS investment - 25,000,000 - -
Disposal of subsidiaries net of proceeds - - = -
Net cash provided for (used in) investing
activities 210,488 {372,158,376) {233,014,211) (587,959,297}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Additions to capital stock 17 3,750,000 94,575,000 58,218,980 224,000,000
Deposit for future subscription - 200,000,000 235,000,000 -
Payment of interest-bearing loans - {179,400) {1,430,933) -
Praceeds from interest-bearing loans - - - -
Interest paid = - - =
Net cash provided by financing activities 3,750,000 294,395,600 291,788,047 224,000,000
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH - - = .
NET CASH FLOWS INCURRED BY
DISPOSED SUBSIDIARIES 20 - - = =
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (38,420) (94,875,332) 57,455,106 (471,602,176}
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,021,361 472,623,537 601,786 472,623,537
CASH AT END OF YEAR RUB2,941 ®377,648,205 58,056,892 £1,021,361

See accompanying Notes ta Consolidated Financial Statements.



GREENERGY HOLDINGS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly MUSX Corporation and Subsidiaries)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(With Comparative Information for 2012)

1. Company Information

Greenergy Holdings Incorporated (formerly MUSX Corporation, singly as the Parent Company
and collectively as the Group) was registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange

Commission (SEC) in January 29, 1992. The Parent Company's shares are listed with the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Parent Company, formerly engaged in the manufacture and sale of semiconductors
products, changed its primary purpose to that of a Holding Parent Company. The change was
approved by the SEC on December 15, 2008.

On June 22, 2011, the SEC approved the amendment of the Parent Company's Articles of
incorporation which provided for the following:

o Change in the registered business name from MUSX Corporation to its current name;

e Change in the principal office and place of business of the Corporation from L14 Net Cube
Centre, 3rd Avenue corner 30th Street, E- Square Crescent Park, West Bonifacio Global Clty,
Taguig to 54 National Road, Dampol II-A, pulilan, Bulacan;

s Decrease in par value from 80,10 per share to R0.01 per share; and

e Increase in authorized capital stock from R500.0 million divided into 5.0 billion shares at

RO.10 par value per share to 1.0 billion divided into 100 billion shares at R0.01 par value per
share.

On March 8, 2012, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock from R1.0 biilion
divided into 100 billion shares at R0.01 par value per share to B2.0 billion divided into 200 biliion
shares at RO.01 par value per share.

On June 27, 2013, the Board of Directors {BOD) approved the restructuring of the authorized
capital stock to R2.0 billion divided into 1.9 billion common shares at R1,0 par value per share
and 1.0 billion preferred shares at R0.10 par value per share. As at December 31, 2013, the

application for the restructuring of the authorized capital stock is still pending approval by the
SEC.

Approval of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the period ended March 31m
2014 were reviewed by the Board of Directors (BOD) and authorized for issue by the BOD on May

14, 2014 and that the President was authorized to sign and approve the financial statements on
their behalf.



As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Parent Company holds investments in the following
subsidiaries and associates:

Percentge_Ownershlp
Principal
Country of Principal  place of
Name of Investee incorporation actlvity  business 2013 2012
Subsidiaries
Total Waste Management Recovery Waste Pulilan,
System, Inc. (TWMRSI) Philippines Management Bulacan 51.00% 51.00%
Renewable Pulilan,
Winsun Green Ventures, Inc. (WGV1} Philippines Energy Bulacan 100.00%  100.00%
Biomass Haldings, Inc. {BHI} Philippines Holding Makati City 60.00% 60.00%
Associates
Quezon
Isabela Alcogas Corporation {IAC) Philippines Manufacturing City 50,00% -
Loglstics and Muntinlupa
Music Semiconductor Philippines, Inc.* Philippines Manufacturing Clty 39.00% 39.00%
Sunchamp Real Estate Development
Corporation (SREDC) Philippines Real Estate Makati City 20.00% -

*Classified as an associate on July 2011

Music Semiconductor Philippines, inc. (MSPI), MUSIC Semiconductors, tnc. (M51), Musem Electonic
N.V. [MENV) and Protelcon, inc. (Pi)

On December 23, 2010, the stockholders approved the Parent Company’s initiative to venture
into other business opportunities such as renewable energy and waste management systems by
reducing its interest in the semiconductor business. Accordingly, the Parent Company, in 2011,
divested all of its interests in MS), MENV and P1 but retained 39% from 100% interest in MSPI1.

in conhection with the divestment, MSPI issued a three (3) year convertible bond in favor of the
Parent Company equivalent to #118.5 million. The convertible bond of R118.5 million was fully

impaired and written-off because management has assessed that these bonds may not be
realized.

Total Waste Management Recovery System Inc. (TWMRS!)

On June 30, 2011, the Parent Company’s stockholders approved the acquisition of fifty one 51%
of TWMRSI, a domestic corporation engaged in the business of building, operating and managing
waste recovery facilities and waste management systems within the Philippines. On March 27,
2012, the Parent Company acquired the 51% ownership in TWMRSI when the SEC approved the
application for increase in authorized capital stock of TWMRSI (see Note 12).

Winsun Green Ventures Inc. {WGVI)

On June 22, 2012, the SEC approved the incorporation of WGVI with the primary purpose of
engaging in renewable energy resources.

Biomass Holdings inc. (BHI)

On October 31, 2012, the SEC approved the incorporation of BHI, a 60%-40% Company
arrangement with ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastracture Eund {TCIF). BHI was incorporated with
the primary purpose of investing in any other entity engaged in the business and/or operation of
renewable energy systems and/or harnessing renewable energy resources. Subsequently, BHI
invested in San Carlos Biomass, Inc. (SCB1}, a blomass power plant in Negros {see Note 12).
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On October 2, 2013, the BOD authorized the Parent Company to explore the sale of all or a
portion of the Parent Company’s 60% equity in BHL

On March 26, 2014, the BOD approved the sale of the Parent Company’s 60% equity in BH under
such terms and conditions as may be beneficial to the Corporation. Hence, the assets in BHI
were presented as “assets classified as held for sale” and liabilities in BH1 as “liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale” (see Note 8).

On April 2, 2014, the Parent Company disclosed to the public that it has bound itself to divest its
60% equity interest in BHI in favor of TLCIF or the latter’s designee, with deeds of sale and
assignment to be finalized on or before june 30, 2014, As of May 15, 2014 the parties have not
executed the pertinent deeds of sale and assignment,

1sabela Alcogas Corporation (IAC)

On December 11, 2012, the Parent Company’s stockholders approved a 50% investment inIAC, a
company registered with the Philippine SEC on October 17, 2007. IAC's primary purpose is to
engage in the business of manufacturing of goods such as ethanol and other biofuel and to trade
the same on a whaolesale or retail basis.

sunchamp Real Estate Development Copr. (SREDC)

On October 2, 2013, the Parent Company acquired 20% of the voting shares of SREDC. SREDC is
primarily engaged in developing self-sustaining agri-tourism projects. It currently has real and
enforceable rights over approximately 145 hectares of land in Rosario, Batangas.

Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance
Basis of Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on
historical cost basis, except for AFS investments in quoted securities which are stated at fair
value, and are presented in Philippine Peso, the Group's functional currency. All values represent
amounts rounded to the nearest peso unless otherwise stated.

in 2013, the Group changed its functional currency from the US Dollar to the Philippine Peso as a
result of the Group’s divestment of its foreign subsidiaries, MSI, MENV and Pi, in June 2011, The
necessary notification for the change was made with the SEC on January 30, 2013. The
consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were restated to effect the
change (see Note 6).

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PERS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
Council {FRSC) and adopted by the philippine SEC. This financial reporting framework includes
PERS, Philippine Accounting standards (PAS), and Philippine Interpretations from International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and SEC provisions.



summary of Changes in Accounting Policies

Adoption of New and Revised PFRS

The Group adopted the following new and revised PFRS, which became effective as at
January 1, 2013, These are summarized below.

e PAS 1, Financial Statement Presentation, Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive
income - The amendment changed the presentation of items in Other Comprehensive

Income. Items reclassified to profit or loss at a future point in time are presented separately
from items that cannot be reclassified.

e PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Amendment) — There were numerous changes ranging from the
fundamental such as removing the corridor mechanism in the recognition of actuarial gains

or losses and the concept of expected returns on pian assets to simple clarifications and
re-wording.

e PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements - The standard replaces the portion of PAS 27,
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, that addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements and SIC-12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. It
establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose
entities. Management has to exercise significant judgment to determine which entities are
controlled, and are required to be consolidated by a parent company.

e PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - PFRS 11 replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-
13, Jointly-controlled Entities - Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers - The standard
removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities (JCEs) using proportionate
consolidation. instead, joint venture entities that meet the definition of a joint venture are
accounted for using the equity method.

e PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - The standard includes all of the disclosures
that were previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated financia! statements, as well as all of
the disclosure requirements that were previously included In PAS 31 and PAS 28. These
disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in substdiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also required.

s Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, and PFRS 12: Transition Guidance -
The amendments provide additional transition relief in PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12,
limiting the requirement to provide adjusted comparative information to only the preceding
comparative period. Furthermore, for disclosures related to unconsolidated structured
entities, the amendments removed the requirement to present comparative information for
periods before PFRS 12 is first applied.

e PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011) - As a consegquence of the new
PERS 10 and PFRS 12, PAS 27 is now limited to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities, and associates in separate financial statements.

e PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011) - This standard
prescribes the application of the equity method to investments in assoclates and joint
ventures.
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PERS 7, Financial Instruments Disclosures - Offsetting Financiol Assets and Financial Liabilities
(Amendment) - The amendment requires entities to disclose Information that will enable
users to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s
financial position. The new disclosure is required for all recognized financial instruments that
are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - The standard establishes a single source of guidance
under PFRS for all fair value measurements, it does not change when an entity is required to

use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under PFRS when
fair value is required or permitted.

Improvements to PFRS

The omnibus amendments to PFRS issued in May 2012, which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, were issued primarily to clarify accounting and
disclosure requirements to assure consistency in the application of the following standards.

- PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements
PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

PAS 32, Financial Instrument: Presentation
PAS 34, interim Financial Reparting

t

The adoption of the foregoing new and revised PFRS did not have any material effect on the
financial statements. Additional disclosures have been included in the notes to financial
statements, as applicable.

New and Revised PFRS Not Yet Adopted

Relevant new and revised PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31,

2013 and have not been applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements are
summarized below.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014:

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27: Investment Entities - The amendments provide
an exception from the requirements of consolidation for investment entities and Instead
require these entities to present their investments in subsidiaries as a net investment that is
measured at fair value. Investment entity refers to an entity whose business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income or both.

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Ligbilities - The
amendments address inconsistencies in current practice when applying the offsetting criterta
in PAS 32. The amendments clarify (1) the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable

right of set-off’; and {2) that some gross settiement systems may be considered equivalent to
net settlement.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015:

e PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement - This standard is the first

phase in replacing PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and applies
to classification and measurement of financial assets as defined in PAS 33.
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Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and revised PFRS Is not
expected to have any material effect on the consolidated financial statements. Additional
disclosures will be included in the consolidated financial statements, as applicable.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidatign

The accompanying consolidated financial statements incdlude the financial statements of the
Company and its Subsidiaries, which it controls as at March 31 of each year, except for BHI in
2013 (see Note 8). The Parent Company has control over the Investee when the Parent Company
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Parent Company, using uniform accounting policies for similar transactions and other events in
similar circumstances. Adjustments, where necessary, are made to ensure consistency with the
palicies adopted by the Group. All significant intercompany balances and transactions including

inter-group unrealized profits and losses, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date when the Parent Company obtains control and continue to be consolidated until
the date when such control ceases. The results of operations of the subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the period are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.

Changes in the controlling ownership interest (i.e., acquisition of non-controlling interest or
partial disposal of interest over a subsidiary) that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions.

Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at fair value on
acquisition date and the amount of any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree. For each business
combination, the acquirer measures the noncontrolling interest in the acguiree either at fair
value or at its proportionate share in the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related
costs incurred are expensed and included in general and administrative expenses. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Parent Company’s share of the identifiabie net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the
Parent Company’s share of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized
directly in profit or loss.

When the Parent Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assurned for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic ¢ircumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.



Common Control Transactions. Where there are business combinations in which all the
combining entities within the Group are ultimately controlled by the same ultimate parent
before and after the business combination and that the control is not transitory (“business
combinations under common control”), the Parent Company accounts such business
combinations under the acquisition method of accounting, if the transaction was deemed to
have substance from the perspective of the reporting entity. In determining whether the
business combination has substance, factors such as the underlying purpose of the business
combination and the involvement of partles other than the combining entities such as the
noncontroliing interest, are being considered.

In cases where the business combination has no substance, the Parent Company accounts for the
transaction similar to a pooling of interests. The assets and liabilities of the acquired entities and
that of the Parent Company are reflected at their carrying values. The difference in the amount
recognized and the fair value of the consideration given, is accounted for as an equity transaction
(i.e., as either a contribution or distribution of equity). Further, when a subsidiary is transferred
in a common control transaction, the difference in the amount recognized and the fair value of
consideration received, is also accounted for as an equity transaction.

Comparatives balances are restated to Include balances and transactions as if the entities have

been acquired at the beginning of the earliest year presented and as if the entities have always
been combined.

Goodwill. Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognized for noncontroiling interest over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the consideration is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree
are assigned to those units,

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
~amount of the operation when determihing the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance Is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the net assets plus

cumulative exchange differences arising from the transiation and goodwill is recognized in profit
or loss.

The goodwili on investment in an associate is included in the carrying amount of the related
investment.



Segment Reporting

Operating segments are components of the Group: (a) that engage in business activities from
which they may earn revenue and tncur expenses {including revenues and expenses relating to
transactions with other components of the Group); (b) whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the Group’s senior management, its chief operating decision maker, to make
decisions about resources to be aliocated to the segment and assess its performance; and (c) for
which discrete financial information is available.

For purposes of management reporting, the Group's operating businesses are organized and

managed separately on a per company basis, with each company representing a strategic
business segment.

Financial [nstruments

Date of Recognition. Financial instruments are recognized in the consolidated statements of
financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

initial Recognition.  Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value of the
consideration given {in case of an asset) or received {in case of a liability). Except for financial

instruments at fair value through profit or foss (FVPL), the initial measurement of financial assets
includes transaction cost.

Classification of Financial Instruments. The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at FVPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments
and available-for-sale (AFS) investments. The Group classifies its financial liabilities as either
financial liabilities at FVPL or other financia! liablities. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the investments are acquired and whether these are quoted in an active market.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial

recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every
reporting date.

The Group does not have financial instruments classified as financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVPL and HTM investments.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any
allowance for impairment. The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on
acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process. Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within
12 months from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

The Group’s cash in banks, receivables, and due from related parties are classified under this
category.



AFS Investments. AFS investments are non-derivative financial assets that are not classifled in
any of the other financial asset categories. AFS investments are carried at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Changes in fair value of AFS investments are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. AFS financial assets are

classified as noncurrent assets unfess the intention is to dispose such assets within 12 months
from the reporting date.

AFS investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value

cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of reporting date.

The Group’s AFS investments consist of quoted and unquoted equity securities.

Other Financial Ligbilities. Other financial liabilities at amortized cost pertain to issued
financial instruments or their components that are not classified or designated at FVPL and
contain obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder as to settle the

obligation other than by the exchange of fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of own equity.

The Group’s trade and other payables and due to related parties are classified under this
category.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities. A financlal asset (or, where applicable, a part of
afinancial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

* the right to receive cash flows from the asset expired;

o the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either: (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b} has neither transferred

nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement
in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group couid be required to pay.
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A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the

recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in
profit ar loss.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group uses market observable data as far as possible when measuring the fair value of an
asset or a liability. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

+ Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

« Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

« Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized in
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its

entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement.

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made In measuring fair values is included in Notes 11
and 26.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
{excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
origina!l effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition}.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of loss, if any, is recognized in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. Objective evidence includes observable data that comes t0
the attention of the Group about loss events such as, but not limited to, significant financial
difficulty of the counterparty, a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, or the increasing probability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
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other financial reorganization. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in the
group of financial assets with similar credit risk and characteristics and that group of financial
assets Is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss Is recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment. The impairment assessment is performed at the end of each
reporting period. For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are

grouped on the basis of such credit risk characteristics such as payment history, past-due status
and term.

Loans and recelvables, together with the related allowance, are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized. If, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in
profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized
cost at the reversal date.

AFS Investments. The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has
been below its original cost. When there is evidence of impalrment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the consclidated statement of
comprehensive income - is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses on equity investments
are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Noncurrent assets, or disposal groups comprising of assets and liabilities, that are expected to be
recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use, are classified as held for
sale. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or
disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification, except when there is delay of the sale caused by
events or circumstances beyond the Group's control.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the assets, or components of a disposal group,
are remeasured in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. Thereafter, generally the
assets, or disposal group, are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and falr value less
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cost to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains or

losses on remeasurement are recognized in profit or loss. Gains are not recognized in excess of
any cumulative impairment loss.

Other Current Assets

This account consists of the excess of input VAT over output VAT and other prepayments.

Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. Prepayments are
initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid or in kind. Subseguently,

these are charged to expense as these are consumed in operations or expire with the passage of
time.

Prepayments are classified in the consolidated statements of financial position as current asset
when the cost of goods or services related to the prepayment are expected to be incurred within
one year or the Group’s normal operating cycle, whichever is longer. Otherwise, prepayments
are classified as noncurrent assets.

Investment in Associates

Investment in associates are accounted for using the equity method and recognized initially at
cost.

An associate is an entity in which the Parent Company has significant influence but not control,
over the financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the
Parent Company holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights of the entity.

The Parent Company's share of its associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in
profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized in equity.

The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Parent Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Parent Company does not recoghize
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments in behaif of the associate.

Advances for Waste Recycling Project

Advances for waste recycling project is stated at cost, less impairment losses, if any. It represents
mainly machinery and equipment and steel structures for the construction of a waste recycling
facility.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost Jess accumulated depreciation and any impairment in
value.
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The initial costs of property and equipment include expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the assets, such as its purchase cost, including import duties, taxes and other

directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss in the year incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate its cost over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Asset Type Number of Years
Transportation equipment 5
Furnitures and fixtures 5

Depreciation commences when an asset is in Its location or condition capable of being operated
in the manner Intended by management. Depreciation ceases at the earlier of the date that the
item Is classified as held for sale {or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale}
and the date the asset is derecognized.

Major renovations that qualify for capitalization are depreciated over the remaining useful life of
the related assets or to the date of the next major renovation, whichever is earlier.

The assets’ useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that these

are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and
equipment.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until these are no longer in use and no
further charge for depreciation is made in respect of those assets.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future eConomic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising from
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is inciuded in profit or loss in the year the item is derecognized.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying values of investment in associates, advances for waste recycling project, property
and equipment, and other nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Nonfinancial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss under the expense category consistent with
the function of the impaired asset,

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. [f such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impalrment loss
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount
cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and
amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
is recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such a reversal, the depreciation and
amortization are adjusted in future periods to aliocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less
any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Capital Stock and Additional Pajd-in Capital

Capital stock is measured for all shares issued. incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of tax. The
excess of proceeds from the issuance of shares over the par value of shares is credited to
additional paid-in capital.

Deficit

Deficit represents the accumulated net income or losses, net of any dividend declaration.

Earnings (Loss} per Share

Earnings per share (EPS) is determined by dividing net income {loss) by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year, with retroactive adjustments for any
stock dividends declared.

Fair Value Reserve for AFS Investments

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net fair value changes of AFS investments until such
investments are derecognized or impaired.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliabiv measured. The following specific recognition criteria must
also be met before revenues are recognized.

Interest Income. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective
interest method.
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Cost and Expense Recognition

Costs and expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
upon consumption of goods, utilization of the services or at the date these are incurred.

Interest expense is reported on an accrual basis and is recognized using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is generally expensed as incurred.

Short-term Employee Benefits

The Group provides short-term benefits to its employees in the form of basic 13th month pay,
bonuses, employer's share on government contribution, and other short-term benefits.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the consolidated
financial statements are measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign
currencies are initially recorded In the functionat currency rate ruling at the transaction date.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Nonmonetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to that operation, recagnized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate
component of equity, reclassified from equity to profit or loss {as a reclassification adjustment
when the gain or loss on disposal is recognized.

The Group determined that its functional currency to be Philippine Peso (R) as a result of the
Parent Company’s divestment of its foreign subsidiaries, M5, MENV and Pl, in June 2011.
Previously, the Group presented its consolidated financial statements in United States Dollar
(USS). The consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2014, 2013, 2012 and December 31,
2012 were restated to effect the change (see Note 6).

income Tax

Current tax. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and the prior periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authaorities.

Deferred tox. Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, and carry forward benefits of the excess
of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the reguiar corporate income tax and net
operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
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be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused MCIT and NOLCO can
be utitized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the

period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate {and tax laws) in
effect at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current

tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Value-Added Tax (VAT). Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT
except:

« where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the expense item; and

» receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from the taxation authority is included as part of
“Other current assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to

settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one jtem included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits 1s remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Events After the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s financial position at
the end reporting year {adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcome that could
require a materlal adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the
future.

Judgment

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Determination of Functional Currency. Based on the economic substance of the underlying
circumstances relevant to the Group, the functional currency is determined to be Philippine Peso
{see Notes 2, 4, and 6). Also, it is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Parent Company, its subsidiaries and associates operate.

Classification of Financial instruments, The Group classifies a financial instrument, or its
component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions
of a financial asset, liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument,
rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The classifications of the various financial assets and liabilities of the Group are disclosed in notes
to consolidated financial statements {see Note 25).

Determination of Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The Group carries certain financial assets
and liabilities at fair value, which requires use of accounting estimates and judgment. While
significant components of fair value measurement were determined using verifiable objective
evide nce, the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group utilized different
valu,ation methodologies and assumptions. Any changes in fair value of these financial assets and
liabilities would affect profit and loss and equity.

The carrying values and fair values of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2014, 2013,
2012 and December 31, 2012 are disclosed in Note 26.
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Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next fiscal years are discussed below,

Estimating Impairment Losses of Loons and Receivables. The Group maintains allowance for
impairment loss accounts based on the result of the individual and collective assessment under
PAS 39. Under the individual assessment, the Group is required to obtain the present vaiue of
estimated cash flows using the receivable’s original EIR. Impairment loss is determined as the
difference between the receivables’ carrying balance and the computed present value. Factors
considered in individual assessment are payment history, past due status and term. The
collective assessment would require the Group to classify its receivables based on the credit risk
characteristics (payment history, past due status and term). Impairment loss is then determined
based on historical loss experience of the receivables grouped per credit risk profile. Historical
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period in which the historical loss experience is based
and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do hot exist curtently. The
methodology and assumptions used for individual and collective assessments are based on
management’s judgment and estimate. Therefore, the amount and timing of recorded expense
for any period would differ depending on the judgments and estimates made for the year.

The carrying value of receivables and due from related parties amounted to 2415.1 million in
2014, R274.77 million in 2013 and R401.4 million in December 31, 2013 (see Notes 10 and 21).

Impairment of AFS Investments. The Group classifies investment in equity securitites as AFS and
recognizes movements in fair value in other comprehensive income and equity.

When a decline in the fair value of an AFS has been recognized in other comprehensive income
and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income shall be reclassified from equity to profit or loss as 3
reclassification adjustment even though the financial asset has not been derecognized. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is reciassified from equity to profit or loss shall be the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit
or loss. impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument
classified as available for sale shall not be reversed through profit or loss.

Impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial wealth
of the investee, industry and sector performance and operational and financing cash flows. No
impairment loss on AFS investments was provided in 2013 and 2012. AFS investments amounted
to R97.9 million as at March 31, 2014, B78.1 million as at March 31, 2013 and R97.9 million as at
December 31, 2013 (see Note 11).

Estimating of Useful Lives of Property and Equipment. The useful life of each of the items of
property and equipment is estimated based on the year over which the asset Is expected to be
available for use. Such estimation is based on a collective assessment of practices of similar
businesses, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. The estimated
useful life of each asset is reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from previous
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estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other
limits on the use of the asset. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in the amounts and timing of recorded expenses brought about
by the changes in the factors mentioned In the foregoing. A change In the estimated useful life

of any item of property and equipment would impact the recorded operating expense and
noncurrent assets.

There was no change in estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment in 2014, 2013
and 2012,

The carrying value of property and equipment in 2014 amounted to R0.99 million, R290.97
million in 2013 and P1.1 mitlion as at December 31, 2013 (see Note 14).

Assessment of Impairment of Nonfinancial Asset and Estimation of Recoverable Amount. The
Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that the
nonfinancial assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset, which is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and its value-in-use. In determining fair value, an appropriate valuation model is used, which can
be based on quoted prices or other available fair value indicators. In estimating the value-in-use,
the Group is required to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash
generating unit and also to choose an appropriate discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Determining the recoverable amounts of the nonfinancial assets, which involves the
determination of future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and
ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the use of estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect the consolidated financial statements. Future events could indicate that these
nonfinancial assets may be impaired. Any resulting impairment loss coutd have a material
adverse impact on the financia! condition and results of operations of the Group.

The preparation of estimated future cash flows involves significant judgment and estimations.
While the Group believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, significant
changes in these assumptions may materially affect its assessment of recoverable values and
may lead to future additional impairment changes under PFRS.

Nonfinancial assets that are subject to impairment testing when impairment indicators are
present (such as obsolescence, physical damage, significant changes to the manner in which the
asset is used, worse than expected economic performance, a drop in revenues or other external
indicators) are as follows:

For the three months ended March 31,
December 31,

Note 2014 2013 2013
Property and equipment 14 £990,189 290,960,038 R1,104,407
investment in associates 13 146,545,009 64,416,483 147,640,485

Advances for waste recycling project 12 235,008,036 235,008,036 235,008,036
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Estimating Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets. Management reviews the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets at each reporting date. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against
which the related tax assets can be utilized. No further deferred tax assets have been recognized

in 2014, 2013 and 2012.

6. Prior Period Adjustments

The 2012 and 2011 consolidated financial statements have been restated to reflect the following:

e Fair value changes of AFS investments based on PSE published quotation resulting to
increase of #2.7 million in 2012 in AFS investments and fair value reserve;

» Derecognition of currency translation adjustments (CTA) of #27.7 million in 2011 relating to
divested foreign subsidiaries. These comprise of CTA recognized in 2010 amounting to
R18.0 million and CTA recognized in 2011 amounting to 9.7 million. Reduction in CTA
recognized in 2012 amounting to R10.4 million was also derecognized resulting to increase in
investment in associate by 3.7 million and an increase in net loss by R6.7 million.

* Adjustment of share of noncontrolling interest (NCI} in TWMRSI by 828.5 million in 2012 to
reflect 49% share of minority interest. Of this amount, R17,699 was previously included as
part of deficit attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company.

e Reclassification of the following:

- Advances for a waste recycling project of R235.0 million, previously presented as part of

property and equipment.

- Lloss due to dilution of ownership interest in a former subsidiary in 2011 amounting to

R87.9 million from "Other operating expenses -

operations.”

net” to “Loss from discontinued

- Amount due from related parties of #1.9 million was offset against amounts due to

related parties of 1.9 million.

- Amount due from minority stockholder previously presented as “other reserves”,

The following is the summary of financial tmpact of restatements and reclassification
adjustments of the 2012 and 2011 consolidated financlal statements:

December 31, 2012

As Previously

Reported Restatements As Restated
Due from related parties £268,950,733 {®1,061,861} R267,928,872
AFS investment 75,436,653 2,707,673 78,144,326
Investments in associates £9,624,640 3,691,843 93,316,483
Advance for a waste recycling project - 235,008,036 235,008,036
Property and equipment 236,513,475 {235,008,036) 1,505,439
Due to refated parties 7,705,104 {1,914,491) 5,790,613
Noncontrolling interest 294,387,566 (28,492,921) 265,894,645
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December 31, 2012

As Previously

Reported Restatements As Restated
Deficit (297,985,892} 21,068,128 {276,917,764)
Other reserves 29,327,852 {29,327,852) -
Fair value reserve for
AFS investments (8,705,880) 2,707,673 {5,998,207)
Currency translation adjustment 17,358,586 (17,358,586) =
Net Joss (28,083,953) {6,723,011) (34,806,964)

December 31, 2011

As Previously

Reporied Restatements As Restated
Currency translation adjustment R27,773,440 {R27,773,440) [
Ceficit, December 31 (271,935,159} 27,773,440 (244,161,719)
Net loss (219,652,667) 27,773,440 (191,879,227}

7. Business Combination

incorporation of WGV}

As discussed in Note 1, the Parent Company incorparated WGV! as approved by SEC on June 22,
2012 primarily to develop and invest in renewable energy resources. The Parent Company owns
100% equity interest in WGVI and initially subscribed to 5.0 million common shares at 1.0 a
share of which R3.75 million are subscription receivable.

On December 16, 2013, the Parent Company subscribed to additional 15 million common shares
at R1.0 a share amounting to R15 million. The subscription receivables in 2012 were also fully
seftled in 2013.

The cost of investment is equivalent to the Parent Company's share in net assets of WGVI at the
date of incorporation. As such, no goodwill or investment income was recognized.

Incorporation of BHI
The Parent Company and TLCIF incorporated BHI as approved by SEC on October 31, 2012
primarily to engage in the business of investing in renewable energy systems. The Parent

Company owns 60% equity interest in BHI and initially subscribed to 40.1 million commaon shares
at R1.0 a share.

The cost of investment is equivalent to the Parent Company’s share in net assets of BHI at the
date of incorporation. As such, no goodw ill or investment income was recognized.

As at December 31, 2013, the assets andi liabilities of BHI were presented as “Assets classified as
held for sale” and liabilities directly related to assets, liabilities as held for sale, respectively, as a
result of the intended sale by the pa-ent Company of its equity interest in BHI to TLCIF
{(see Note 1 and 8).
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8. Asset Classified as Held for Sale

On October 2, 2013, the BOD authorized the Parent Company to explore the sale of al! or a
portion of the Parent Company’s 60% equity in BHI,

On March 26, 2014, the BOD approved the sale of the Parent Company’s 60% equity in BHI.
Accordingly, in the 2013 consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of BHI were
classified as asset classified held for sale / liabilities directly related to asset classified as held for
sale. In 2012, the assets and liabilities of BHI were consolidated with the Parent Company.

The subject assets and liabilities are as follows:

Assets classified as held for sale Note Amount
Cash R3,567,289
Investment in San Carlos Biopower, Inc. {SCBI) 12 667,537,300

R671,104,589

Liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held for sale

Accrued expenses #854,687
Advances to officers 2,516,427
Due to related parties 2,424,306
R5,795,420

9. Cash

This account consists of:

For the three months ended March 31

2014 2013 December 31,2013

Cash in banks R932,941 R377,598,205 R971,361
Cash on hand 50,000 50,000 50,000
#982,941 R377,648,205 ®1,021,361

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Interest income earned on cash
in banks amounted to R.0005 million, in 2014, R1.4 million in 2013 and R1.3 million for December
31, 2013, respectively.
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10.

Receivables, net

This account consists of:

For the three months ended March 31

Note 2014 2013 December 31, 2013
Non-trade receivables 11,174,265 R11,174,265 R11,174,215
Advances to officers 21 69,235,382 46,929 59,258,344
Loans receivables 8,023,363 - 8,023,363
Others 3,750,000 5,173,560 -
Total 92,183,010 16,394,754 78,455,922
Allowance for impairment
loss {18,218,191) (10,194,828) {18,218,191)
173,964,819 6,199,926 ®60,237,731

Non-trade receivables pertain mainly to a receivable from Lodestar investment Holding
Corporation {LIHC) amounting to R10.2 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Advances to officers are due and demandabile.

Loans receivable pertains to a 5 year interest bearing loan granted by the Parent Company to its
employees and BOD (Eligible Members) for the purchase of the issued shares of the Parent
Company. Total loan receivable amounted tgo #8.0 million in 2013 (R8.0 million in 2012). The
shares to be acquired by the Eligible Members will be held as collaterai for the loan and will only
be released to them after the loan is repaid. The Management provided a full allowance for
impairment as they believe that the receivables are not recoverable.

The receivables have been reviewed for impairment and impairment losses, if necessary, are

recognized accordingly. There are no movements in the allowance for impairment account in
2014, 2013 and 2012,

11.

AFS Investments

This account consists of:
For the three months ended March

31,
2014 2013 December 31, 2013
Quoted
AgriNurture Inc. (ANH R- £78,144,326 R75,428,047
Unquoted
Green Hope (Fujian) Technology Co.,
Ltd. (GHTCL) . - - 22,500,000

Balance at end of quarter/year 97,928,047 278,144,326 R97,928,047
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AFS investment as at December 31, 2013 consists of 14,231,707 shares of ANI (9,302,896 shares
as at December 31, 2012). The fair value of the AFS investments has been determined based on
the quoted amount published by the PSE as at of December 31, 2013,

in 2013, WGVI through its assignee acquired 15% equity interest in GHTC for #22.5 million.

The movements of the AFS investments as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as foliows:

For the three months ended March 31,

2014 2013 December 31, 2013
Balance at beginning of year Rr97,928,047 R78,144,326 278,144,326
Additions - - 68,214,061
Fair value reserve for AFS investments - - (48,430,340)
Balance at end of year R97,928,047 R78,144,326 97,928,047

Movement in the fair value reserve for AFS investments is as follows:

For the three months ended March 31,

December 31,

2014 2013 2013

Balance at beginning of year #54,428,547 g— £5,998,207
Net change in fair value during the

year - - 48,430,340

Balance at end of year R54,428,547 R R54,428,547

The measurement of fair value of AFS investment in ANI is categorized under level 1, while the
AFS investment in GHTCL is measured at cost.

12. Advances for investments

BHI

On December 4, 2012, BHI entered into an investment agreement with SCB wherein BHI acquired
a 64% equity interest in SCB for a total consideration of 2667.0 million (see Note 1). In December
2012, BH! advanced R200 million to SCB as part of the agreed investment in SCB to support the
construction of the 18 megawatt bagasse-fired power generation project in San Carlos City,
Negros Occidental. In March 2013, additional fund of R467.0 million was Invested to SCB.

On May 8, 2013, SEC approved the application for the increase in authorized capital stock of SCB.
Consequently, the advances for investment were applied to the increase in authorized capital
stock.

TWMRSI

On June 30, 2011, the Parent Company’s stockholders approved the acquisition of fifty one
percent {51%) of TWMRSI, a domestic corporation engaged in the business of building, operating
and managing waste recovery facilities and waste management systems within the Philippines
and advanced R235.0 million as part of the agreement. The Parent Company acquired the 51%
ownership in TWMRS! on March 27, 2012 (see Note 1).
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The amount advanced was used to acquire machineries and equipment and steel structures for
TWMRSI's waste recycling project. As at December 31, 2013, TWMRSI has not started the
construction as it is still finalizing the arrangement for the site where the project will be located.

13,

Investment in Asscciates

Maovements in this account follows:

For the three months ended March 31,

2014 2013 December 31,2013
MSPI
Initial cost of investment £62,561,379 R62,561,379 R62,561,379
Accumulated share in net losses -
Balance at beginning of year 5,947,833 5,844,236 5,844,236
Equity in net income {loss) during
the year (928,629) {28,989,132) 103,597
Balance at end of quarter/year 5,019,204 (23,144,896} 5,947,833
67,580,583 39,416,483 68,509,212

For the three months ended March 31,

2014 2013 December 31, 2013
IAC
Acquisition cost 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
Accumulated share in net gain:

Balance at beginning of year (811,268) - (89,131)
Equity in net losses during the year (101,697) - {722,137}
Balance at end of quarter/year (912,965) - {811,268)

24,087,035 25,000,000 24,188,732
SREDC
Acquisition cost 55,000,000 - 55,000,000
Accumulated share in net gain: - -

Balance at beginning of year (57,459) - -
Equity in net loss during the year {65,150) - -
Balance at end of quarter/year {122,609) - {(57,459)

54,877,391 - 54,942,541
Total ®146,545,009 R64,416,483 R147,640,485
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Share in income (loss) in associates presented in the summary below:

For the three months ended March 31,

2014 2013 December 31, 2013
MSPI (#928,629) - ®103,597
IAC (101,697) - {722,127)
SREDC {65,150) - {57,459)
(p1,095,476) - (R675,999)

Upon dilution of ownership interest in MSPI from 100% to 39% (see Note 1), the initial cost of
investment in M5PI is determined as follows:

Amount
Net assets at dilution date {August 1, 2011)
Capital stock 816,574,300
Additional paid-in capital 224,209,538
Deficit (80,370,046}
Net assets 160,413,792
Percentage of ownership 39%
Initial cost of investment In associate ®62,561,379
Ssummarized financial information of MSPI, IAC and SREDC are as follows:
MSPI
March
2014 2013 December 31, 2013
Current assets Rg9,792,816 217,645,677 R10,759,992
Noncurrent assets 213,643,949 193,870,899 218,722,949
Current labilities 1,400,816 40,671,330 41,033,089
Net assets 182,576,755 170,845,247 188,449,852
Revenue - 354,031 5,163,301
Net income (loss) {2,381,099) 310,785 265,634
SREDC
March
2014 2013  December 31, 2013
Current assets R117,039,198 - £117,039,198
Noncurrent assets 3,062,850 - 3,062,850
Current liabilities 20,201,564 - - 19,875,816
Net assets 99,900,484 - 100,226,232
Revenue - - 100,000

Net loss {325,748 - {1,149,178)
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14. Property and Equipment

Movements in this account are as follows:

March 31, 2014

Transportation Furnitures and
Equipment Fixtures Total
Cost
At January 1, 2014 82,293,176 P152,744 #2,445,920
Additions - - -
At March 31, 2014 2,293,176 152,744 2,445,920
Accumulated Depreciation
At January 1, 2014 1,298,154 43,359 1,341,513
Depreciation 106,518 7,700 114,218
At March 31, 2014 1,404,672 51,059 1,455,731
P3888,504 #101,685 R990,189
March 31, 2013
Transportation Furnitures and
Equipment Fixtures Total
Cost
At January 1, 2013 82,293,176 R80,745 ®2,373,921
Additions 289,606,008 - 289,606,008
Balance at March 31, 2013 291,899,184 80,745 291,979,929
Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization
AtJanuary 1, 2013 855,921 12,560 868,483
Depreciation 114,658 36,752 151,410
Balance at March 31, 2013 970,589 49,312 1,019,853
£290,928,605 #31,433  R290,960,038
December 31, 2013
Transportation Furnitures and
Equipment Fixtures Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year ®2,293,176 R80,745 R2,373,921
Additions - 71,999 71,999
Balance at end year 2,293,176 152,744 2,445,920
Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 855,922 12,560 868,482
Depreciation 442,232 30,799 473,031
Balance at end year 1,298,154 43,359 1,341,513
B995,022 RB109,385 ®1,104,407
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Depreciation expense of R0.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 and
20.5 million as of December 31, 2013 and has been charged to administrative expenses (see Note
18).

There are no fully depreciated property and equipment as of March 31, 2014, 2013 and
December 31, 2013 that are still being used in operations.

Management has reviewed the carrying vaiues of the Group’s property and equipment as of
March 31, 2014, 2013 and December 31, 2013 for impairment, Based on the results of its
evaluation, there were no indications that the property and equipment were impaired.

15.

Other Noncurrent Assets
This account consists of:

For the three months ended

March 31,
2013 December 31,
2014 2013
Others ®179,006 B- R179,006
Advances to projects - net of allowance for
impatrment losses of 7.1 million in 2013 - - -
$179,006 R R179,006

The Group provided allowance for impairment losses of 7.1 million in 2013 for unrecoverable
advances.

1le.

Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of;

Far the three months ended March 31,

December 31,

2014 2013 2013

Trade payables R140,277 R11,391 #26,851
Accruals for:

Professional and listing fees 1,366,027 - 1,366,027
Statutory habilities 37,021 45,954 297,619
Others 179,071 18,745,842 242,968

Rr1,441,842 R18,803,187 21,933,465

Statutory liabilities are dues and remittances which represent contributions of employees that
will be remitted to various government agencies, It also inciudes taxes withheld from salaries of
employees and income payment to suppliers, which will be remitted in the subsequent month.

Others include accrual of travel expenses, communication expenses and other operating
expenses payable upon demand.
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Trade and other payables are settled throughout the year.

17.

Capital Stock

The Company has authorized capital stock of 200.0 billion shares at R0.01 par value equivalent to
#2.0 billion as at March 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. Movements of the shares are as follows:

March 31, 2014

March 31, 2013

Authorized capital stock Number of Shares Amount  Number of Shares Amgount
Balance at beginning of year 200,000,000,000 #2,000,000,000 100,000,000,000 #1,000,000,000
Increase In authorized capital stock at
RO.01 per share - - 100,000,000.000 1,000,000,000
200,000,000,000 #2,000,000,000 200,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Issued and subscribed
Balance at beginning of year 185,952,856,500 1,859,528,565 142,852,856,500 1,428,528,565
Issuances and subscriptions of shares 375,000,000 3,750,000 8,500,000,000 85,000,000
Batance at end of year 186,327,856,500 1,863,278,565 151,352,856,500 1,513,528,565
Subscription receivable {535,250,000} (318,250,000)
$1,328,028,565 #1,195,278,565

December 31, 2013

Dacember 31, 2012

Authorlzed capital stock Number of Shares Amount  Number of Shares Amopunt
Balance at beginning of year 2D0,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 100,000,000,000 ¥1,000,000,000
Increase in authorized capital stock at

#0.01 per share - - 100,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

200,000,000,000 #2,000,000,000 200,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Issued and subscribed
Balance at beginning of year 142,852,856,500 1,428,528,565 69,376,000,500 693,760,005
Issuances and subscriptions of shares 43,100,000,000 431,000,000 73,476,856,000 734,768,560
Balance at end of year 185,952 A56,500 1,859,528,565 142,852,856,500 1,428,528,565
Subscription receivable (535,250,000} {328,250,000)
#1,324,278,565 R1,100,278,565

The movements of the subscription receivalle are as follows:

For the three months ended March 31,

2014 2013 2012  December 31, 2013
Balance at beginning of year R535,7 50,000 £359,250,000 B 328,250,000
Increase - (41,000,000} 359,250,000 207,000,000
Balance at end of quarter/year 535,25 0,000 318,250,000 #359,250,000 R535,250,000

On March 8, 2012, the SEC approved the: increase in authorized capital stock from R1.0 billion
divided into 100 billion shares with a R0,\1 par value per share to 22.0 billion divided into 200.0
billion shares with a 0.01 par value per sh, are.

On June 27, 2013, the BOD approved th e restructuring of the authorized capital stock to
#2.0 billion divided into 1.9 billion commor 1 shares at 1.0 par value per share and 1.0 billion
preferred shares at R0.10 par value per shar e. As at December 31, 2013, the application for the
restructuring of the authorized capital stock | s still pending approval by the SEC.

The following summarizes the information on the Group’s registration of securities under the

Securities Regulation Code:
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Authorized
Date of SEC Approval Shares
March 8, 2012 200,000,000,000
June 22, 2011 100,000,000,000
October 15, 2009 5,000,000,000
June 24, 2008 2,450,000,000
December 28, 2007 1,120,000,000
September 7, 2007 160,000,000

The following summarizes the information on the Company’s issued and subscribed shares as at
March 31, 2014:

Number of shares Percentage of
issued and subscribed shares
Shares owned by public 110,340,676,840 59.22%
Non-public Shareholdings:
a. Affiliates, directors and officers 53,602,801,400 28.77%
b. Principal/substantial stockholders 21,151,856,000 11.15%
c. Others 1,232,522,260 0.86%
Total 186,327,856,500

Of the total shares owned by the public, 26,380,781720 shares are foreign-owned.

The total number of shareholders of the Company is 1,026 as at March 31, 2014 {1,039 as at
December 31, 2012).

The principal market for the Group’s capital stock is the Philippine Stock Exchange, The high and
low trading prices of the Group's shares are as follows:

Quarter High Low
January 2013 to December 2013

First : £0.020 R0.019
Second 0.016 0.016
Third 0.015 0.014
Fourth 0.013 0.012
January 2012 to December 2012

First 0.020 0.018
Second 0.020 0.018
Thirg 0.020 0.013
Fourth 0.020 0.018

Under an Investment Agreement dated August 15, 2012 with TLCIF, the latter subscribed to
20,776,856,000 primary shares of the Parent Company at an issue price of #0.02 per share,
equivalent to B415,537,300, and the Parent Company issued two {2) Warrant 13 Certificates
under the American call option covering 10,489,500,000 shares with a strike price of RQ.02 per
share and 10,489,500,000 shares of the Parent Company with a strike price of R0.03 per share,
exercisable within 1 year and 3 years from issuance, respectively. The Parent Company may also
Issue stock warrants that would allow subscription of up to 8,123,999,500 shares of the Parent
Company from its unissued authorized capital stock. The additional warrants shall contain the
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same terms and conditions as the warrants issued to TLCIF. The first warrant 13 certificates was
not exercised in 2013,

On November 15, 2012, the stockholders approved the issuance and listing of warrants in favor

of the Corporation’s officers and directors under such terms and conditions to be determined by
the BOD.

18.

Genera!l and Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

For the three months ended March 31,

December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2013
Salaries and employee benefit #644,650 R572,731 £317,936 R2,712,029
Stock transfer and listing cost 332,036 493,175 4,557,280 1,907,329
Depreciation 114,218 151,410 2,364 473,031
Transportation and travel 109,350 198,871 179,550 504,465
Professional fee 90,000 50,230 - 458,000
Utilities 63,453 32,824 15,825 41,299
Penalties and charges 53,292 - -
Taxes and licenses 17,828 47,130 6,622 46,001
Representation and
entertainment 17,010 109,669 166,153 264,491
Fuel and oil 13,09¢% 8,538 27,321 45,234
Office supplies 10,156 40,867 27,563 129,510
Repairs and maintenance - 273,840 - 14,956
Separation pay - 75,000 - -
Insurance - o 13,050 -
Rentals - 18,000 - -
Others 36,116 11,299,669 33,408 240,395
#1,501,208 R13,371,954 R5,347,072 R6,836,740

15,

Other Operating Expenses {Income)

This account consists of:

Three months ending March 31

2012 December 31,

2014 2013 2013
Impairment loss on other
noncurrent assets
{Note 15) R- B- - R7,133,533

Impairment loss on

advances to related

party -
Loss on disposal of AFS

investments -
Provision for impairment

loss on receivables -
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Provision for impairment
loss on investment in

subsidiary - - - -
Provision for impairment

loss on loans

receivables - - = =
Other income - - - (94,852}
Total 8- - - 287,038,681

20.

Discontinued Operations

On December 23, 2010, the stockholders approved the divestment of 61% interest or reduction
of interest from 100% to 39% in MSPI and all of its interests in foreign subsidiaries (MSI, Museum

and Protelcon), companies engaged in semiconductor business [see Note 1).

The operations of these subsidiaries were presented as discontinued operation in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The details are as follows:

Note Amount
Sales R28,959,364
Cost of sales (12,920,918)
Gross profit 16,038,446
Operating expenses (16,904,227}
Operating loss {865,781)

Impairment loss due to dilution of ownership
interest in MSPI

Impairment loss recognized on the disposal of
foreign subsidiaries constituting the

(87,852,413)

discontinued operation {87,937,151)
CTA of the divested foreign subsidiaries 6 27,773,440
Loss before tax from discontinued operation s {148,881,905)
Provision for income tax {3,619,305)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (#152,501,210)
The net cash flows incurred by the disposed subsidiaries are as follows:
2011
Operating R158,169,729
Investing 3,958,075
Financing {73,588,621)
Net cash inflow (outflow) Rr88,539,183
Loss per share:
2011
Income (loss} from discontinued operations (R152,501,210)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 58,771,333,583

{£0.002597)
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There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year ended December 31, 201l
Therefore, the Group’s basic and dilutive loss per share from discontinued operation for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are equal.

21. Related Party Transactions

Related party relationships exist when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between
and/or among entities which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or

between and/or among the reporting enterprises and their key management personnei,
directors or its stockholders.

For the thres months ended March 31

2014 2013
Nature of Amaunt of Qutstanding Amaunt of Outstending
Aceount Related Party  Relationship Transaction Transactions Balance Teansaction Balance
TLCIF Stockholder Noninterest-
Due from related besring
parties advances L] P267,008,012 #267,014,740 ¥267,014,740
GMTCL Stockholder Noninterest-
bearing
advances 62,500,000 62,500,000 - -
MSPI Associate Noninterest-
bearing
advances 40,000 39,717,922 - 39,677,922
1AL Subsidiary Noninterest
bearing
advances 10,238,955 10,238,955 - -
Spring Lover  Under Noninterest
(sL) common baaring
control advances 49,610 49,610 49,610 49,610
SREDC Under Noninterest
common bearing
control advances 377,822 383,972 106,650 106,650
Earthright Stockholder Noninterest
Holdings inc. bearing
(EHN) advances 4,555 4,555 4,555 4,555

|Forward)
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2014 2013
Nature of Amount of Outstanding Amaunt of Gutstanding
Account Related Party  Relationship Transaction Transactlons Balance Transaction Balance
AgriNurture Under Noninteras 193,006 - - -
Ine. {ANI) comimon thearing
control advances
Stockholder Noninterest
bearing
advances - 852,630 62,304 62,306
Others 37,314 37,314 1,333,903 1,333,903
380,793,970 308,249,686
Allownncelor  MSP Assaciate
impairment loss (39,677,922) (39,677,922)
#341,116,048 R268,571,764
Advances to Officers Noninterest
officers bearing
advances $58,913,021 #59,258,344 #345,323 #345,323
Duetorelated  Officers and Naninterest
parties employees bearing
advances #a5,201,055 #46,201,055 P6,357,141 P4,442,650
AgriNurture lnc. Nonintarest
{ANY) bearing
advances 344,126 344,126 - -
TLCIF Noninterast
bearing
advances - - 4,338,797 4,338,787
45,545,181 $8,781,447
December 31, 2013
Due from related parties #341,121,776
Due to related parties (34,677,687)

Key Management Compensation

There has been no short-term or long-term compensation of key management personnel for the
period ended March 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,

. Income Tax

Income tax benefit on continuing operations consists of:

For the year ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Current R1,897 R17,468 -
Deferred {6,955) {25,501) -
(w5,058) {®8,033) R—

The reconciliation of the benefit from income tax computed at the statutory income tax rate to

benefit from income tax shown in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss) as
follow: '
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2013 2012 2011
Income tax computed at
normal rate of 30% {R3,987,212) {R10,444,499) (R56,477,572)
Non-taxable income
subjected to final tax (378,214) {701,047) (2,574)
Share in profit of associate 202,800 (1,646,663) (79,868)
Non-deductible expenses 82,646 131,025 37,448,954
Unrecognized deferred taxes
on temporary differences 2,140,060 6,958,354 12,703,705
Unrecognized deferred tax
asset on NOLCO 1,932,965 . 5,677,329 6,348,828
Unre@gnized MCQT 1,897 17,468 58,527
{®5,058) (R8,033) R-
The details of NOLCO and MCIT are as follows:
a. Unrecognized NOLCO
NOLCO
Year Incurred Incurred Applied Explred  Ending Balance Year of Expiry
2013 R6,443,216 R - F6,443,216 2016
2012 18,924,429 - - 18,924,429 2015
2011 21,162,760 - - 21,162,760 2014
2010 2,594,290 - (2,594,290) - 2013
R49,124,695 Rr— (R2,594,290) R46,530,405
b. Recognized NOLCO
NOLCO Application
Year Incurred Incurred Addition JExpired _Ending Balance __Year of Expiry
2013 R §23,182 R p23,182 2016
2012 85,003 - - 85,003 2015
2011 182,347 - - 182,347 2014
R267,350 R23,182 R- #290,532
c. MCIT
Beginning Incurred
Year Incurred balance this year Written-off Ending Balance _ Year of Expiry
2013 - £1,897 R- R1,897 2016
2012 17,468 - - 17,468 2015
2011 58,527 - - 58,527 2014
#75,995 #1,897 g ®77,892
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23. Loss per Share

Basic loss per share

For the three months ended March 31,

2014 2012 December 31, 2013

Net loss attributable to the equity holders of the Parent

Company {#2,579,026) {R5,282,201) {#13,753,280)
)ssued and subscribed common shares at beginning of
year 166,827,856,501 142,852,856,500 €9,376,000,500 142,852,856,500
Effect of issuance and subscription of common shares 3,125,000 18,750,000,000 23,975,000,000
Divided by weighted average number of common shares 166,830,981,501 148,519,523,167 $8,126,000,500 166,827,856,501
Basic loss per share {R0.000015) (R0.000060) (RO.000082)

Dilutive loss per share

For the three months ended March 31,

2014 012 December 31, 2013

Net loss attributable to the equity holders of the Parent

Company [#2,579,026) (®5,282,201) {R13,753,280)
Issued and subscribed common stocks at beginning of
year 166,827,856,501 142,852,856,500 €9,376,000,500 142,852,856,500
Effect of issuance and subscription of common stocks 3,125,000 18,750,000,000 23,975,000,000
Average incremental nurrber of stocks of issued warrants - - 18,613,499,500
Divided by welghted average number of common shares 166,830,981,501 148,519,523,167 £8,126,000,500 185,441,356,000
Dilutive loss per share {RD.000015) {#0.000060} (RO.000074)

Dilutive potential ordinary shares for the years ended M
issued warrants of the Group (see Note 17}, The Group’

quarter ended March 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are equal.

arch 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 pertains to
s basic and diluted loss per share for the

24,

Noncontrolling Interests

indirectly to the Parent Company. The details of the account are as follows:

Noncontrolling interests represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable directly or

March 31, 2014
Share in net assets Other
on acquisition/ Income (loss) comprehensive
incorporation date for the year income Total
TWMRSI 871,033 {#9,513) - Rr862,520
BHI 265,477,186 {7,600} - 265,469,586
$266,349,219 (17,113) - $266,332,106
March 31, 2013
Share in net assets Other
on acquisition/ comprehensive
incorporation date Loss for the year income Total
TWMRSI B29,391,146 - [ R29,391,146
BHI 264,996,420 (53,850,478} = 211,145,942
#294,387,566 (®53,850,478) [ #240,537,088
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tMarch 31, 2012
Share In net assets Other
on acguisition/ comprehensive
incorporation date \.oss for the year income Total
TWMRSI = R R R-
BHI - (64,871) - (64,871)
R- (R64,871) R (R64,871)
December 31, 2013
Share in net assets Cther
on acguisition/ Income {loss) comprehensive
incorporation date for the year income Total
TWMRSI R898,225 {R13,135) B- R8ES5,090
BHI 264,996,420 480,766 - 265,477,186
R265,894,645 467,631 - R266,362,276

Other comprehensive income pertains to net exchange difference from translation to
presentation currency for the year attributable to noncontrolling interests.

25.

Financial jnstruments

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group is exposed to variety of financial risks, which result from both its operating, financing
and investing activities. The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of cash on hand
and in banks, receivables, due from and to related parties and trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.

Group policies and guidelines cover credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The objective of
financial risk management is to contain, where appropriate, exposures in these financial risks to
limit any negative impact on the Group's results and consolidated financial position. The Group
actively measures, monitors and manages its financial risk exposures by various functions
pursuant to the segregation of duties principles.

Credit risk. Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will defauit on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. Credit risk arises from deposits with banks, as
well as credit exposure to receivables from third and related parties.

The Group trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. Also, it is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result
that the Group’s exposure to doubtful accounts is not significant.

For banks, the Group has maintained its business relationships with accredited banks, which are
considered in the industry as universal banks, The receivables from related parties are
accordingly collected in accordance with the Group's credit policy.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of other counterparties, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts as follows:
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Far the three months ended March 31,

2014 2013 December 31, 2013
Cash in banks R932,941 377,598,205 ®971,361
Receivables 73,964,819 6,199,926 60,237,731
Due from related parties 341,116,048 268,571,764 341,121,776
AFS investments 97,928,047 78,144,326 97,928,047
R513,941,855 R730,514,221 E500,258,915

Collaterals and other credit enhancements. The amount and type of collateral required depends
on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are implemented regarding
the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters. As at December 31, 2013 and
2012 the Group’s transportation equipment serves as collateral for the interest-bearing loan.
Interest rate of the loan is 5.51% per annum.

Credit quality per class of financial assets. The credit quality of the Group’s financial assets is
evaluated using internal credit rating. High grade accounts are those recelvables from
counterparties with whom collections are made without much collection effort. Standard grade
accounts consist of receivables from its distributors with good financial condition and with
relatively low defaults, Substandard grade accounts on the other hand, are receivables from
other counterparties with history of defaulted payments. These counterparties include banks,
customers and related parties who pay on or before due date.

The tables below show the credit quality of financial assets and an aging analysis of past due but
not impaired accounts.

Murch 31, 2014

Nelthar past due nos impsired Fast dus but not Impaired Impaired

Stondwrd  Substandard Qvar 30 Crvae 90 Cver 180 Financiel
High Grade Grade Grade Days Dy Cays Assats Totat
Cash In banks N932,941 - - - [ (5 | »971,361
Racalvables 73,964,319 - - - - - 18,218,101 92,183,010
Dus from related parties 341,116,083 - - - - 39,677,922 100,743,970
AFS Invastments 97,928,047 - - - - - - 97,928,047
Yotal 513,941,855 .- - [ [ S—  MS7,338,113  BS21.076,389

March 31, 2013

Nelther past due nor impaired Past dua but not impaired Impalred

Seandard  Substandard Over 30 Over 50 Over 180 Financlal
High Grade Grade Grade Days Diays Days Assets Total
Cash In hanks #377.598,208 L5 L= - - | 5 - B377,598,205
Racelvabias 6,199,926 - - - - - 14,218,191 4,418,117
Due from relatad parties 268,571,764 - - - - - 139,677,922 308,249,586
AFS Investments 78,144,326 - - - - - - 78,144 326
Total $730,514,221 B- §- - [ - #57,896,113 785410334

Dacembar 31, 2013

Nalther past dus nor Impsired Past dus but not Impalred 1mpsired

Standerd Substandard Cwer 30 Over %0 Over 180 Flaanclal
Higtr Grace Grade Grade Days Days Days Assats Total
Cash In banks MrL361 - - - = g L »97L,361
Racolvables 0,231,111 - - - - - 18,218,191 70,838,922
Dua from related partiss LI TTE - - - - 39,677,922 180,799,558
AFS Invastrants 97,920,047 - - - - - - 97,928,047
Totsl lm,l-S_! 918 — B " - - #$7,396,113  B558,155,028

Liquidity risk. This represents the risk or difficulty in raising funds to meet the Group's
commitment associated with financial obligation and daily cash flow requirement. The Group is
exposed to the possibility that adverse exchanges in the business environment and/or its
operations would result to substantially higher working capital requirements and the subsequent
difficulty in financing additional working capital. The Group’s approach to manage its liquidity
profile are: {a) to ensure that adequate funding is available at all times; (b) to meet commitments



-39-

as they arise without incurring unnecessary costs; and {¢) to be able to access funding when
needed. Also, the Group addresses liquidity concerns primarily through cash flows from
operations and short-term borrowings, if necessary. The Group likewise regularly evaluates
other financing instruments to broaden the Group’s range of financing sources.

The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as of
March 31, 2014, 2013 and December 31, 2013, respectively based on the contractual
undiscounted payments:

March 31, 2014

Less than Over One Ovar Twa Ovar Fout Over
©On Damand OnaYesr 1o Two Yesrs  to Four Yeard to Fiva Years Fiva Years Totak
Trade and other payables 1,441,842 [ [ [ [ [ P1AA1,842
Due to releted parties 46,545,181 - - - - - 46,345,181
P47,987,023 - L P " Ll #47,987,013

March 31, 2013

Less than Over One Over Two Over Four Over
On Demand One Yaar to Two Yaars  to Four Years to Flve Years Flve Years Totsh
Trade and other payables #18,803,187 b [= - - »- R1G,503,187
Due to related partles 8,781,447 - - - - - 8,781,447
27,584,634 B - | Ll n— 027,584,624

Dacamber 31, 2013

Less than Qver One Cver Two Ovar Four Over
On Damand One Year 1o Two Years ‘o Four Years 1o Five Years Five Years Tatal
Trade and ather payablex #1,933,465 [ S - [ [ - £1,933,465
Due to related parties 34,867,687 - - - - - 24,667,687
P36,601,152 L R= - - ot #36,601,152

impairment assessment. The main consideration for impairment assessment includes whether
there are known difficuities in the cash flow of the counterparties. The Group assesses
impalrment in two ways: individually and collectively.

First, the Group determines allowance for each significant receivable on an individual basis.
Among the items that the Group considers in assessing impairment is the inability to collect from
the counterparty based on the contractual terms of the receivables. Receivables included in the
specific assessment are the accounts that have been endorsed to the legal department, non-
moving accounts receivable and other accounts of defaulted counterparties.

For collective assessment, allowances are assessed for receivables that are not individually
significant and for individually significant receivables where there is no objective evidence of
individual impairment. Impairment losses are astimated by taking into consideration the age of
the receivables, past collection experience and other factors that may affect their collectibility.
The Group has not recognized an impairment loss on its financial assets using specific assessment
amounting to for the three months ended March 31, 2014, 2013 and December 31, 2013.

Market risk, Market risk refers to the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and other market prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Group is subject to various market risks, including risks from changes in interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates. There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
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Interest rate risk. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are not significantly

affected by fluctuations of interest rates. As such, the Group is not materially exposed to
interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are not
significantly affected by fluctuations of foreign currency since transactions involving foreign

currency are not material to the Group. As such, the Group is not materially exposed to foreign
currency risk.

Equity price risk. Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of quoted AFS investment
decreases as the result of changes in the value of individual stocks. The Group’s exposure to
equity price risk relates primarily to the Group’s quoted AFS investments. The Group intends to

hold these investments indefinitely in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in equity price,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group's equity. The reasonably possible change in
equity price was based on the year to year change of stock market indices. in quantifying the
effect of reasonably possible change in equity price, the expected return on the AFS investment
is correlated to the return of the financial market as a whole through the use of beta coefficients.

The methods and assumptions used in the analysis remained unchanged over the reporting
periods.

The table below summarizes the impact of changes in equity price on the equity:

2013 2012
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease In
equity price equity price equity price equity price
Change in equity price 25.39% 25.39% 14.45% 14.45%
increase (decrease) on equity B55,272,931  (P55,272,931) R4,222,119 (#4,222,119)

Capital risk management. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure
its ability to continue as a going concern and that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The BOD has overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in proportion to risk. Profiles for
capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the Group’s external environment and the risks
underlying the Group’s business operations and industry.

The Group manages its capital structure (total equity) and makes adjustments to it, in light of
changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust or delay the dividend payment to shareholders, and appropriate a percentage of retained
earnings towards expansion and capita! expenditures.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the period.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio, which is calculated as total

debt divided by total equity. Total debt is equivalent to total liabilities as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Total equity comprises all components of equity
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including capital stock, additional paid-in capital, fair value reserve, deficit and noncontrolling
interest.

For the three months ended March 31,

2014 2013 December 31, 2013
Total liabilities 253,782,443 R27,602,102 P42,408,465
Total equity 1,514,755,472 1,416,299,201 1,513,631,781
Total liabilities and equity ®1,568,537,915  R1,443,901,303 ®1,556,040,250
Debt-to-equity ratio $0.03428: #1  R0.019116: R1 R0.02802: R1

26. Fair Value Measurement

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’'s assets and
liabilities measured at fair value and for which fair values are disclosed, and the corresponding
fair value hierarchy:

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Carrylng Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables.
Cash in bank R932,941 R932,941 #377,598,205 R377,598,205
Receivables 73,964,819 73,964,819 6,199,926 6,199,926
Due from related parties 341,116,048 341,116,048 268,571,764 268,571,764
AFS investments 97,928,047 97,928,047 78,144,326 78,144,326

#513,941,855 R513,941,855 R730,514,221 R730,514,221

Financial Liabllities

Trade and other payables #1,400,883 R1,400,883 R18,030,054  #18,030,054
Due to related parties 46,545,181 46,545,181 10,695,938 10,695,938
#47,946,064 R47,046,064 R28,725992  R28,725992

December 31, 2013
Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:

Cash in bank R971,361 #971,361
Receivables 60,237,731 60,237,731
Due from related parties 341,121,776 341,121,776
AFS investments 97,928,047 97,928,047
£500,258,915 B500,258,915

Finranciat Liabilities
Trade and other payahles P1,635,846 ®1,635,846
Due to related parties 34,677,687 34,677,687

®36,313,533  R36,313,533

The fair values of cash in banks, receivables, due from related parties and trade and other payables
(excluding statutory liabilities) and due to related parties approximate their carrying amounts due
to relatively short-term nature of these financial instruments.
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Fair Vaiue Hierarchy

Quoted AFS investments were measured using Level 1 valuation technique. For the three
months ended March 31, 2014, 2013 and December 31, 2012, there were no transfers from Level
1 to Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements,

27,

Segment Reporting

Business Segments

For management purposes, the Group is organized and managed separately according to the
nature of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business
unit that offers different products and serves different markets.

The industry segments where the Group operates are as follows:

a. The Holding segment is engaged in investment holding;

b. The Renewal energy segment is engaged in the business and/or operation of renewable
energy system and/or harnessing renewable energy resources;

¢. The Waste management segment is engaged in the business of buliding, operating and
managing waste recovery facilities; and

d. The Semiconductor segment is engaged in the manufacturing, development, sales, marketing
and logistics of semiconductor products.

Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets and liabilities include all operating assets used by a segment and consists
principally of operating cash, receivables, available for sale investments and property and
equipment. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of trade and
other payables and loans.

Segment Transactions
Segment income, expenses and perfoermance include income and expenses from operations.
Intercompany transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Segment Financial information
The segment financial information is presented as follows:

March 31,2014
Renewable Waste
Holding Energy Management Total
Share in loss of an associate {®1,095,476} R - (1,095,476}
General and administrative
expenses (1,348,990) {19,000) {19,000} {1,386,990)
Interest income 545 - - 545
Depreciation {114,218) - - (118,218)
Income tax benefit (expense) - - - o
Net loss {2,558,139) {19,000} {19,000} (2,596,230}
Income tax benefit {expense) - - - -
Depreclation 114,218 - - 114,218

EBITDA (P2,443,921) {»19,000) {19,000) (92,082,012}
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Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets R1,248,207,955 R85,084,477 ®235,245,483 R1,568,537,515
Segment liabilities R53,726,485 - §55,558 R53,782,443
March 31, 2013
Renewable Waste

Holding Energy Management Total
Share in income of an associate R— R— R B
General and administrative expenses (12,906,037} {300,412} {14,095) (13,220,544}
Interest income 1,443,320 279 838 1,444,437
Depreciation (151,410} - - (151,410)
Income tax benefit (expense) - - - -
Profit {loss) for the year (11,614,127) {300,133) (13,257} (11,927,517)
Income tax benefit {expense) - - - -
Depreciation 151,410 - - 151,410
EBITDA {R11,462,717) (300,133) (R13,257) (P11,776,107}
Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets R1,123,385,799 285,084,966 £235,430,538 ©1,443,501,303
ie_;ment liabilitles R27,236,494 #43,783 Rr321,825 27,602,102

December 31,2013
Renewable Waste

Holding Energy  Management Total
Share in loss of an associate (R675,999) 8- R {#675,999)
General and administrative

expenses {6,216,580) {20,984) {26,145) (6,363,709}

Other operating expense - net (7,038,681) - - (7,038,681)
interest income 1,260,145 148 420 1,260,713
Depreciation (473,031) - - (473,031)
Income tax benefit {expense) (1,887) ~ 6,955 5,058
Net loss (13,246,043) {20,836} (18,770} (13,285,649}
Income tax benefit (expense) 1,897 - {6,955) {5,058)
Depreciation 473,031 - - 473,031
EBITDA (R12,771,115} (#20,836} (25,725} {R12,817,676)
Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets 1,235,713,890 35,082,677 R 235,243,683 R1556,040,250
segment liabilities £42,336,975 - B71,494 R42,408,469

Currently, the Group's operation is only in the Philippines, hence no geographical segment. The
Group however has its operating segments in different regions of the country.



Financial Soudness indicators
March 31,2014, and2013

Current/liquidity ratios
Current ratio

Current ratio =

Quick ratio

Quick ratio =

For the three months ended March 31

Solvency ratios/debt-to-equity ratlos

Solvency ratio

Solvency ratio =

Debt to equity ratio

Oebt to equity ratio =
Asseto-to-equity ratio
Asset-to-equity ratio

Asset-to-equity ratio =
Interest rate coverage ratio

interest rate coverage ratio

interest rate coverage ratio =
Profitability ratio

Return on equity (ROE)

Return on equity

Gross Margin

Gross Margin =

Net Margin =

2014 2013 December 31.2013

20.23% 24.39% 25.33%

Current Assets 1,087,800,468 750,509,826 1,074,093,109
Current Liabilities 53,782,443 29,516,554 42,408,469
2021.42% 2363.66% 2432.73%

Current Assets-inventories-
Prepayments 1,087,168,397 652,419,895 1,031,684,640
Current Liabilities 53,782,443 27,602,102 42,408,469
-5.04% -43.76% -32.44%
After tax net profit+Depreciation

{Non-cash expenses) 2,710,357 -12,080,044 -13,758,680
Total Liablltites 53,782,443 27,602,102 42,408,469
3.55% 1.95% 2.80%
Total liabilities 53,782,443 27,602,102 4240846900.00%
Total Equity 1,514,755,472 1,416,299,201 1,513,631,781
104% 101.95% 102.80%

Total Assets 1,568,537,915 1,443,901,303 1,556,040,250
Total Equity 1,514,755,472 1,416,299,201 1,513,631,781
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Earning before interest and tax
(EBIT) -2,596,139 -11,928,634 -13,285,649
Interest Expense - - -

-0.17% -0.84% -0.88%

Net Profit -2,596,139 -11,928,634 -13,285,649
Total Equity 1,514,755,472 1,415,299,201 1513631781
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Gross Profit - - -

Revenues - 1,443,320.00 1,260,713.00
0.00% -826.47% -1053.82%

Net profit (2,596,139.00} {11,928,634.00} {13,285,649.00)
Revenues - 1,443,320.00 1,260,713.00



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Interim 1* quarter

Cash decreased to P0.98 million as at March 31, 2014 from P1.02 million consclidated at December 31,
2013.

Receivables increased to P73.96 million in March 31, 2014 from P60.24 million as of December 31, 2013
mainly duve to cash advances.

No inventory account is maintained under the group’s financial report as of March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013.

Due from related parties has a minimal decreased to P341.11 million in March 31, 2014 from P341.12
million consolidated at December 31, 2013,

Asset classified as held for sale has no changed as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. On October
2, 2013, the BOD authorized the Parent Company to explore the sale of all or a portion of the Parent
Company’s 60% equity in Biomass Holdings Inc (BHI). On March 26, 2014, the BOD approved the sale of
the Parent Company's 60% equity to BHI. Accordingly, in the 2013 consolidated financial statements, the

assets and liabilities of BHI were classified as asset classified held for sale/ liabilities directly related to
asset classified as held for sale.

Other current assets increased to P0.63 million In March 31, 2014 from P0.61 million consolidated at
December 31, 2013.

Available for sale (AFS) investments amounted to P97.93 mitlion in March 31, 2014 and consolidated
December 31, 2013. This pertains to shares of ANI which was quoted as at December 31, 2013. In 2013,
Winsun Green Ventures acquired 15% equity interest of Green Hope Technology Co. Ltd.

Investment in associate decreased to P146.55 million in March 31, 2014 from P147.64 million at

December 31, 2013 as a result of the share of losses in the operations of subsidiaries acquired in the latter
part of 2012

An advance from waste recycling project is constant amounting to P235.0 million at March 31, 2014 and

December 31, 2013. This pertains to reclassification from property and equipment in 2012 to waste
recycling project in 2013.

Property and equipment, net decreased to P0,99 million in March 31, 2014 from P290.96 million as at
December 31, 2013 mainly due to reclassification of construction in progress to waste recycling project.

Trade and Other Payables decreased to P1.44 million in March 31, 2014 compared to the December 31,
2013 level amounting to P1.93 million as a result of payment of expenses to various suppliers.

Total liabilities increased to P53.78 million in March 31, 2014 fram P42.41 milllon in December 31, 2013
due to the liabilities brought in by the new subsidiaries assumed by the group net of the payment for
interest bearing loans and borrowings.



Share capital increased to P1,328.03 billion in March 31, 2014 from P1,324.28 billion at the end of 2013
due to the issuance of shares during the quarter.

Revenue during the period is composed mostly of interest income from funds deposited with the banks.
The Company did not recognize any sales revenue for the first quarter of 2014,

General and operating expenses in the 1st quarter 2014 totaled P1.5 million and P13.88 million in

December 31, 2013 composed mainly of stock transfer maintenance and listing fees, taxes and licenses,
salaries and wages recorded during the period.

Discussion and Analysis of Material Events and/or Uncertainties Known to
Management.

a. Any known trend, demand, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on
the issuer’s liquidity.

There is no known trend, demand, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material impact
on the issuer’s liquidity.

b. Any event that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company,
including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

There is no event that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company,
including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

¢. All materlal off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsclidated entities or other persons
created during the reporting period.

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations {including contingent

obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons
created during the reporting period.

d. Any material commitment for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments and
the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

The Company has no firm material commitment for capital expenditures.

e. Any known trend, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

There Company has no known trend, events or uncertainties that have has or that are reasonably
expected to have a material Impact on the sales from operations.

f. Any significant element of income or loss that did not arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuer’s continuing
operations.

£. The causes for any material change from period to period.



The total assets of the Company as of March 31, 2014 were P1,568.54 million, creating a net increase by

P12.50 million from P1,556.04 million as of December 31, 2013. This increase is attributed to the cash
generated from the issuance of new shares and cash advances.

The total liabilities at March 31, 2014 increased to PS3.78 million from P42,41 million at December 31,

2013 consolidated as a result of advances from related parties and officers to finance operations of
various cormpanies,

Share capital increased to P1,328.03 million in March 31, 2014 from P1,324.28 million at the end of 2013
due to the new issuance of shares for the quarter.

The Parent Company has no sales revenue for the 1* quarter of 2014 since it began its venture into other
business opportunities. While the Company remain cautious on further growth this year, we are
optimistic that the Company’s recent ventures, particularly in the field of renewable energy and waste
recycling wilt yield positively as they take fruition in the coming periods.

Operating expenses in the 1" quarter 2014 totaled P2.60 million, a decrease from P11.9 million in March
31, 2013. Management continues to focus on optimization of operating expenses as a way to offset any
impact of further sales revenue tightness during the upcoming quarters.

As a result of the above, net loss from operations in the 1st quarter 2014 incurred was P2.60 million, a
decrease compared to the operating loss of P22.25 million for the same quarter last year. During the 1st
quarter 2013, the Company incurred losses of P10.32 million due to the effect of change in fair value of
Available for Sale (AFS) investments from period to period contributed to the over-all comprehensive loss

of the group.
h. Any seasonal aspect that has a material effect on the financial condition or results of operations.

There are no seasonal aspects that have a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations,

Key Performance Indicators

The top 5 key performance indicators for the Company’s business are shown below:

Key performance indicators

For the three manths ended March 31,

2014 2013 December 31, 2013
Current ratio 20.23:1 24.39:1 25.33:1
Debt to equity ratio 0.04:1 0.02:1 0.03:1
Bank debt to equity ratio 0.003:1 0.03:1 0.005:1
Loss per share {(0.000015) {0.000080) (0.000082)

Return on egquity {0.0017) (0.0084) {0.009)}




1. Current assets divided by current liabilities
2. Total liabilities divided by equity

3. Bank loan divided by equity

4. Loss divided by shares outstanding

5. Income divided by equity

% e

After Tax Net Profit + Depreclation
Long TermLiabilities + Short TermLlabilities




Interest Coverage Ratio =

Interest Expense
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